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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Warren County Courthouse and Circuit Court Building, con-
structed in the geographical center of old Warrenton, are
fronted by the Boonslick Road. The Courthouse is a two-story,
red-brick structure exhibiting classic revival characteristics,
including symmetrical plan, cast-iron columms, rounded-arch
windows, and recessed arch doors at the front entrance. The
building is constructed on the old ashlar foundation of the
original courthouse and is topped by a hip-roof shingled in
slate. The ground floor houses the county court, offices of
the probate judge, magistrate judge, county clerk, collector,
assessor, treasurer, and county engineer, while the second
story contains a circuit court room, jury room, and office of
the prosecuting attorney.

The front and side elevations of the Warren County Courthouse
appear I be symmetrical and eqguidimensional. A portico sup-
ported by four corinthian columns frames the entranceway on the
first floor, and a small, wooden tin-sheathed cupola projects
from the center of the roof. Both side elevations are similar
in design, and no appendages appear to have been added or re-
moved., Double-sash windows are used throughout the building,
6-over-it lights on second story, 4-over-4 on the first floor.
Rounded-arches embellish the upper-floor windows while less
ornamental segmental-arches with keystones appear on the ground-
level, The eaves project slightly. The front entrance consists
0f three indevendent doorways topped by rounded-arches. The
entire structure measures aprroximately 45 by 55 feet and is
situated on the northeast portion of the square.
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The Warren County Circuit Court building, a companion building
to the courthouse, exhibits similar roof style and is construct-
ed of identical building materials. The smaller strucure,
flankirg the courthouse to the west, is of brick and the walls,
including interior walls, are 18 inches thick. The eight win-
dows have no locks, but are secured by iron shutters at night.
The Circuit Court building contains two small rooms opening from
either side of an entrance hallway. One room is an office and
reception area while the other houses Circuit Court records.

The only woodwork used in this building is window sills and mold-
ings. The Circuit Court office was intended to be completely
fireproof.
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WARREN COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND CIRCUIT CCURT BUILDING

According to restoration drawings supplied to the Varren County
Court by Mr. Gerhardt Kramer, State Preservation Coordinator,
American Institute of Architects, the courthouse contains a
front lobby, court room, and several administrative offices on
the first floor. The lobby and court room occupy a central
position on this floor. Two large rooms at the east and west
sides of the first floor were subdivided in later years to pro-
vide additicnal offices. The "U" stairway connecting the two
floors appears to be original.

The second floor houses the circuit court chamber, with the
main courtroom occupying most of the south portion of the
floor. Entrance to the Court is obtained through a hallway
which connects that room to the stairway. Flanking the cor-
ridor are jury rooms and other legal offices. Woodwork
throughout appears to be walnut or a similar hardwood, and
floors are wooden but covered with linoleum tile.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Warren County Courthouse is historically significant
since the location of the courthouse at Warrenton was cata-
lytic to the town's development. arrenton was platted
specifically to attract the seat of justice, and town lots
were not sold until construction of the courthouse began.
Furthermore, the establishment of a county seat at Warren-
ton in opposition to the Missouri River town of New Boston
{near the present site of Hopewell, Missouri) demonstrated
an economic transition within Warren County from dependence
upon commerce with the upper Missouri Valley and the in-
creasing establishment of a landed agricultural population
in the interior. Warren County's first settlement was a
French trading post established during 1804. But the ori-
ginal homesteaders were Americans who had clustered at
Flanders Calaway's post near Marthasville by 1806, ('Seventy-
Fifth Anniversary Historical Edition," Warrenton Banner,
December 8, 1914). Settlement throughout the area diffused
northward from this post until population had become quite
evenly distributed. The extension of the Boonslick Road
through Montgomery County during the 1810's especially
stimulated development of the interior, and, as a conse-
quence, at the time the county was organized, a majority of
the residents demanded a courthouse near the population cen-
ter in an interior township. {(Historical Atlas of Warren
County, Missouri, 1877, p. 7). The extension of the road and
the settlement of inland areas necessitated a central market
and seat of justice and likewise heralded the demise of early
settlements on the alluvial plain.
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WARRZN COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND CI2CUIT COURT BUILDING

In January, 1833, the Missouri Legislature removed the eastern
portion of Montgomery County '"to be a separate and distinct
county, to be known and called by the name of Warren County, in
honor of Jocseph Warren, who fell at the Battle of Bunker's Hill
«.."" (Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri to 1835, 18353,
p. 140.) Three Legislators, from St. Charles, Montgomery, and
Franklin Counties, were appointed commissicners to secure the
county seat., In establishing the seat of justice for Varren

LCounty, the commissioners decided between a c¢entrally-located

tract (later to become Warrenton), and the community of New
Boston, on Charette Creek, a tributary to the Missouri River.
Although neither town was settled until 1838, both Warrenton

and New Boston were platted in 1835 in anticipation of receiv-
ing the new courthouse, (Historical Atlas of Warren County,
Missouri, 1877, p. 7.) But a county referendum in January, 1836,
determined the central tract to be the county seat and the first
"Courthouse'" was established in a nearby home, pending comp-
letion of the original permanent structure in 1839.

The existing Courthouse, an example of classic revival archi-
tecture, is the second permanent structure to house Warren County's
seat of justice. The 1839 building was razed in 1869 to allow
construction of a larger edifice upon the foundation of the old.
Construction of the later building began in 1869 and continued
through 1871. The current court building was designed by the

St. Louis architect, William Brady, and was constructed by
Julius Conrad and Company for a total cost of $40,000. (Missouri
State Times, Jefferson City, Missouri, July. 2, 1869),., Brady's
design was accepted by the County Court in July, 1869, but was
amended to provide a foundation five feet above ground, a jail

in the basement, and a slab roof. County Court records suggest
the new building was completed in May, 1871, since the final
payment to Conrad was dated as such.
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WARREN COUNTY COURTHOUSZ AND CIRCUIT COURT BUTIDING

The Circuit Court building at Warrenton was erected in 1866,
following the sacking of the Montgomery County seat at Danville
during the Civil War. The raid at Danville in 1864 was part

of a scheme by Missouri secessionists to destroy civil government
in the Unionist counties of east-central Missouri. The des-
truction of the Danville courthouse prompted Warren County to
build the fireproof Circuit Court building to house irreplace-
able deed records and other vital statistics in the event War-
renton came under siege. (Dr. Herbert Huckriede, "BEarly History
of Warren County," Official Program and Souvenir of the Warren
County Centennial., Warrenton, Missouri: Banner Fublishing Co.,
1937.) The Circuit Court building therefore pre-dates the court-
house by three years, and obviously the design of the smaller
building was duplicated for the seat of justice.

Neither the courthouse at Warrenton nor the Circuit Court building
are in immediate danger of demolition, although the County has
transfered some court meetings to other quarters and has contemp-
lated destroyed the old courthouse. In 1965, the County Court
commissioned Mr, Gerhardt Kramer, FAIA, to study the feasibility
of rehabilitating both structures. Prior to Mr. Kramer's study,
the Court had declared the court building unsafe to use as a seat
of justice. Since 1965, the Warren County Court has ordered

four bond issue elections to restore the courthouse as a commun-
ity center, but all four attempts have failed. It is quite pos-
sible that a future referendum or action by the city council
could dismiss the idea of a community center and order the de=
strwction of the handsome old Courthouse, Conversely, inclusion
in the National Register may stimulate preservation of the
building, '
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WARREN COUNTY CQURTHOUSE

The design of the Warren County Courthouse suggests that Archi-
tect Brady's scheme was not only influenced by the construction
of the companion Circuit Court Building, but also by a model for
a courthouse provided sixty years previously by Asher Benjamin.
(Benjamin, Asher, A New System of Architecture, 1806, plate 42,)
Benjamin (1773-1845) designed numerous buildings but his publica-
tions were also quite influentizl in establishing a standard of
design "that had a strong influence down to the Civil War.™
Hamlin, Talbot, Greek Revival Architecture in America, 1964,

p. 95.) Asher Benjamin's "Plan and Elevation for a Courthouse',
contained in A New System of Architecture, illustrates a scheme
which resembles the Warren County Courthouse not only in the
arrangement and use of columns, but also in the roof design,
placement of windows, and the cupola design.

The possible influence of Benjamin is further illustrated by.
comparing the Warren County Courthouse and the very similar
courthouse in Marshall County, Indiana., {(Hermansen, David R.,
Indiana Courthouses of the Nineteenth Century, Ball State
University Lecture Series, 1968, pp. 13, 20.) The Marshall
County Courthouse, constructed in 1870, was designed by Gurdon
P, Randall ( ? - 1884), a student of Benjamin. Since Brady
and Randall were contemporaries, the architects could have
been in communication or they could have derived their design
ideas from the same contemporary source,
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